
CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 3, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose 
Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525, 
Richardson, TX. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman 
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman 
Gary Beach, Commissioner 
Joe Costantino, Commissioner 
Michael Keller, Commissioner 
Nate Roberts, Commissioner 
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner 
Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Byron Purdy, Commissioner 

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Charles Goff, Assistant City Manager 
Dan Tracy, Assistant Director of Development Services 
Derica Peters, Senior Planner 
Amber Pollan, Planner-Strategic Planning 
Aaron Zilz, Planner II 
Norma Mendoza, Administrative Secretary 

BRIEFING SESSION 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken. 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of August 7, 2024.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. 
Commissioner Beach seconded the Motion. Motion passed 7-0. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 
and will be enacted upon by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for separate consideration. 

2. Replat – Palisades-Richardson Industrial West, Lot 4B Block B: Consider and act on a
request for a replat of Lot 4A, Block B, of the Palisades-Richardson Industrial West Addition
to dedicate and abandon easements for future development of a charter school.  The 5.734-acre
tract of land is located south of N. Greenville Avenue and west of N. Glenville Drive.  Owner:
Andrew Freeman - Basis Texas Charter Schools, Inc.  Staff:  Aaron Zilz.

APPROVED



 
 2 
 
3. Preliminary Plat – Park Hollow:  Consider and act on a request for a preliminary plat of Park 

Hollow to establish the layout for a subdivision with 88 townhome lots and four (4) open space 
lots.  The 6.550-acre is located west of the intersection of E. Buckingham Road and Audelia 
Road.  Owner: Alex Sultzbaugh – Sting Soccer Foundation.  Staff: Aaron Zilz. 

 
Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to recommend approval of the Consent 

Agenda as presented. Vice Chairman Southard seconded the motion. 
Motion Passed 7-0 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
4. Zoning File 24-19 Special Permit - Banyan Hypnosis:  Consider and act upon a request for 

approval of a Special Permit for a hypnosis training center within an existing lease space 
located on a 5.45-acre lot currently zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail within an existing 122,893 
square foot building at 275 W. Campbell Road, east of Gateway Boulevard, on the south side 
of W. Campbell Road. Owner: 275 Campbell Partners LTD. Staff: Amber Pollan. 

 
Ms. Pollan began by stating that this request is for a training center for Banyan Hypnosis located 
at 275 W. Campbell Road, on the southside of Campbell Road between Collins Road and Central 
Expressway. The property is developed with a 122,893 square foot, six-story office building with 
general office and medical uses and zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail. 
 
Ms. Pollan reported the applicant, Banyan Hypnosis Training Center has operated at this location 
since they were granted a Special Permit under Ordinance 4291 on February 1, 2019. That Special 
Permit approval was tied to Suite 245, a 2,425 square foot space in the building. This request is 
for a new Special Permit to continue operating a hypnosis training center in Suite 205, a 1,494 
square foot space and in the same building.  
 
Ms. Pollan stated that the applicant is a Board-Certified Hypnotist with 28 years of experience. 
The office is used as the company’s administrative headquarters which provides hypnosis therapy 
services to individual clients, mostly via Zoom, and provides on-site hypnosis training programs 
three to four times a year. There are three (3) full-time employees and class hours are from 9:00 
am to 6:30 pm Monday through Friday, which is consistent with use of an office building. The 
training sessions are seven (7) days long and capped at eight (8) students taking the course on-site 
with the rest participating on-lin. Most on-site students stay at a nearby hotel and walk or take a 
car service to the site. 
 
Ms. Pollan advised the site contains 411 parking spaces and required parking for office use for a 
building larger than 75,000 square-feet is (1) parking space per 300 square-feet, which would 
require 410 spaces. The intermittent and short-term nature of the trainings is consistent with office 
use where occasional trainings or events may occur. Additional parking requirements for this use 
and scale do not seem warranted, however, if the Commission has concerns about the impact, a 
condition related to a maximum number of sessions a year, or on-site participants may be 
considered. 
 
Ms. Pollan concluded by the proposed conditions for this Special Permit request will no longer tie 
the approval to a specific suite or size. This would allow for Banyan Hypnosis to relocate within 
the building without requiring a Special Permit review. This business has operated at this location 

APPROVED



 
 3 
 
for almost five (5) years and staff is not aware of any complaints or issues. Ms. Pollan indicated 
no correspondence was received regarding this request and she was available for any questions. 
 
Commissioner Beach sited item number three (3) on the motion conditions, which states the special 
permit shall expire and terminate, and this ordinance be of no further effect in accordance with 
Article XXII-A, Section 7 of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, as amended and asked what 
it meant. 
 
Ms. Pollan replied that it references the portion of the code that provides an expiration deadline if 
the use is not established. 
 
Commissioner Beach asked to confirm that it means for as long as the applicant were to stay and 
run that business, it would never expire. 
 
Ms. Pollan said that is correct. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if the primary reason for the need for a special permit is because of the 
training center use, not that it is a hypnosis center. 
 
Ms. Pollan said that is correct. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions for staff, seeing none the public hearing 
was opened and the applicant was asked to come forward. 
 
Mr. Calvin Banyan, 245 W. Campbell Road, Richardson stated he has enjoyed working out of the 
building in Richardson and stated that covid had allowed them to offer their services online and 
downsize their physical facility.  
 
Chairman Marsh asked if he was aware of any other hypnosis centers in the Dallas area. 
 
Mr. Banyan replied there are a few professional hypnotists, but his is the only licensed school in 
the state of Texas. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if he accepted private patients. 
 
Mr. Banyan responded yes. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if he was able to hypnotize someone online. 
 
Mr. Banyan said yes, because physical touch or manipulation was not necessary. 
 
Seeing no more speakers, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing. 
Commissioner Beach seconded the motion and motion passed 7-0. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made a motion to recommend approval of the request 
as presented. Commissioner Beach seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
 

APPROVED



 
 4 
 
5. Zoning File 24-20 Special Permit - Clawzania Arcade: Consider and act upon a request for 

approval of a Special Permit for an amusement arcade on a 4.58-acre lot currently zoned C-M 
Commercial within an existing lease space in a 49,944 square-foot building located at 1310 E. 
Belt Line Road, south of Belt Line Road, on the west side of Plano Road. Owner: Richland 
Ferrell LP. Staff: Derica Peters. 
 

Ms. Peters began by stating that Zoning File 24-20 is a request for a Special Permit for an 
amusement arcade at 1310 E. Beltline Road. The applicant is requesting to occupy an 
approximately 2,000 square foot suite space with an amusement arcade featuring claw-machine 
games that award toys and prizes for a young customer base. Amusement arcades are allowed in 
Local Retail LR-M(2) and C-M Commercial district upon approval of a Special Permit. 
 
Ms. Peters stated proposed hours of operation will be between the hours of 12:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
on Monday through Thursday, and between the hours of 12:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Friday, 
Saturday, and Sunday. The applicant does not intend to provide alcoholic beverages for purchase 
to customers. The site provides 296 parking spaces, and the amusement arcade will require parking 
at the same ratio as a retail use which is a total of six (6) spaces, one (1) parking space per 333 
square feet of total floor area. 
 
Ms. Peters indicated the conditions of the special permit are included in the staff report along with 
the prohibition on 8-liners, which is a digital slot machine. No correspondence has been received 
in response to the request and she is available for any questions. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions for staff, seeing none the public hearing 
was opened and the applicant was asked to come forward.  
 
Mr. Danny Doan, 3432 Danbury, Plano, Texas owner and operator of Clawzania, stated that the 
arcade consists of claw machines that allow people to win small toys that can be traded in to receive 
a larger toy at the toy redemption counter. 
 
Mr. Doan indicated that he had other businesses and had plans to open three (3) other Clawzania 
Arcade locations in Texas. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there was a Clawzania location in Houston, and if the user base was 
mainly small children and young adults. 
 
Mr. Doan replied that the arcade in Houston was called Clawmania, which is different from his 
business. He stated that Clawzania was for families of all ages. 
 
Commissioner Beach asked if the business was a franchise. 
 
Mr. Doan answered no.  
 
Commissioner Costantino asked how many people would be employed. 
 
Mr. Doan replied they would have two (2) employees during the week and four (4) employees on 
weekends. 
 

APPROVED



 
 5 
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked if they would be providing refreshments. 
 
Mr. Doan stated they would not be serving refreshments but may put in vending machines.  
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked what the amount of time, on average, a person would spend in the 
arcade. 
 
Mr. Doan stated it would be an average of ten (10) minutes. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard replied that this would mean a lot of turnover in customers. 
 
Mr. Doan responded with yes. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there would be restrooms. 
 
Mr. Doàn replied there are two (2). 
 
Seeing no more speakers, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing. Vice 
Chairman Southard seconded the motion and motion passed 7-0. 
 

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to recommend approval of the request as 
presented. Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular business 
meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
      
Bryan Marsh, Chairman 

APPROVED




